
Meeting of:  Heywood Township Committee
Date: Monday, 14th January, 2019
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Phoenix Centre - The Phoenix Centre

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  CIVIC PRAYERS 

2.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

4.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

6.  OPEN FORUM 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township.

7.  MINUTES 3 - 9

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on the 8th October 2018 
and of the Heywood Township Sub-Committee held on 25/10/18.

Public Document Pack



8.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC ORDER - BAMFORD ROAD, 
HEYWOOD HALL ROAD, AND QUEENS PARK ROAD, HEYWOOD 

10 - 22

For the Township to consider a report on traffic order report.

Heywood Township Committee Members
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Alan McCarthy Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Carol Wardle

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
John Addison

01706 924816



HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATED SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 25 October 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Rush (Chair); Councillors Beswick, Dutton, 
Susan Emmott, Malcolm, McCarthy, O'Rourke and Wardle

OFFICERS: John Addison and Stuart Hay (Corporate Services)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Robinson

6 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor O’Rourke declared a pecuniary interest in a submitted application for 
funding as contained within agenda item 6, namely application for Renovation St. 
Lukes Scout Hut (HTC/09/18).

Councillor Malcolm declared a pecuniary interest in the application from Heywood 
and District Angling Society (HP/06/18).

Both Councillors left the room when these applications were discussed and voted 
upon.

7 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

The Committee were advised that 2 additional applications for funding from the 
Heywood Township Funds had been received from the following:

 Social Prescribing Programme
 Roch Valley Raiders BMX Club

RESOVED:

That the 2 additional applications for funding be considered under Minute item 10.

8 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

There were no items of business.

9 MINUTES

It was noted that further to Minute 4 – Heywood Township Funds 2018/2019, that 
applications HP/08/18 and HTC/07/18 be recorded as referred.

RESOVED:

That further to the above amendment that the Minutes of the meeting held on the 5th 
July received as a correct record.

10 HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2018/19

The Sub-Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which 
provided an update on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments and balances 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



of Heywood Township Funds 2018/19 and to enable the Sub-Committee to consider 
the allocation of funds to proposed projects.

Alternatives considered: In considering the report, Members would consider whether 
or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

RESOLVED:

1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood 
Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1, 1A and 
2 of the report be noted;

2. That decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 
3 of the report be noted;

3. That it be noted that the Townships and Communities Manager has 
assessed proposed projects to be considered for funding against the 
criteria of eligibility for the Heywood Township Fund, the priorities of the 
Township and that any specific risks had been identified in the report;

4. That the applications for Township Funds be dealt with as outlined in 
the table below.

Reference
Application Decision

Revenue
HP/06/18 Heywood and District Angling 

Society
Approved £2,500 form 
Projects Fund plus three 
times £500 from each of the 
Ward Funds, totalling 
£4,000.

HP/20/18 Crail Place lighting Approved in full £1,632
HP/22/10 Social Prescribing Programme Refused. (Improved 

Application invited to next 
Municipal Financial Year)

Capital
HTC/02/18 Norfolk Avenue bollards Withdrawn
HTC/09/18 Renovation St. Lukes Scout 

Hut
Refused

HTC/08/18 Roch Valley Raiders BMX 
Track resurfacing

Approved £5, 000 plus 
additional Revenue Funds, 
three Ward Fund grants, 
North £1,300, Hopwood Hall 
£1,000 and West £700. 
Totalling £8,000

HTC/01/18 Bury Road, junction with Moss 
Hall Road and heap Brow

Approved £3,500

Page 4



HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 8 October 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Rush (Chair); Councillors Beswick, Dutton, 
Susan Emmott, Malcolm, O'Rourke, Robinson and Wardle

OFFICERS: John Rooney – Assistant Director information, Customers and 
Communities, Stuart Hay –Township and Engagement Officer, John Addison 
Senior Governance and Committee Officer.

65 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr McCarthy.

66 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

67 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no urgent items of business.

68 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

There were no private items of business.

69 OPEN FORUM

Traffic Calming – Middleton Road

A Member of the Public, Mr Ogden, raised a concern about speeding in 
Heywood, in particular on Middleton road, were a child had recently been 
knocked over. He requested that the Township look into traffic calming 
measures on that road. 

The Township expressed their own concern at speeding in Heywood 
especially on Middleton road. It was noted that the Committee had in the past 
looked to have traffic lights installed on this road, and that the Council’s 
Highways department had stated that there were limited options for the road, 
as it was categorised as a main road.  It was agreed that this matter would be 
raised with the Highways department again to find a solution, the Committee 
hope to see as a minimum for the area to become a traffic enforcement area.

Boundary Review

A Member of the public submitted a written question raising concerns about 
the proposed boundary changes and the loss of the Heywood parliamentary 
ward. Requesting the Township do all it can to fight it.

Public Document Pack

Page 5



It was agreed by the Committee that as this part of the open forum, covered 
parts of Agenda item 9 – Proposed Boundary Changes, this item would be 
covered in full under the open forum item.

All Members agreed and felt strongly that the loss of Heywood name as a 
constituency was unacceptable, with Members noting that Rochdale Council 
had passed a motions objecting to the removal. The Committee also urged 
anyone with a concern to write to the Heywood MP outlining their concerns.

The following matters were raised as part of the Open Forum:-

70 MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Meeting held on the 4th June 2018 be agreed as a 
correct record.

71 HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATED SUB COMMITTEE

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee be 
approved, subject to the inclusion of the word “refused” to the application 
referenced HP/08/18.

72 PROPOSED BOUNDARY CHANGES

See Minute 69.

73 REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES

The Township Committee was advised that a statutory review of Polling 
Districts and Polling Places had concluded, since the last meeting of the 
Township, on 4th June 2018. The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 
2013 required, that local authority Electoral Registration Officers to review 
their areas polling districts and places every five years. A final report on the 
recommendations arising from the review was to be considered by the Council 
at its meeting on 17th October 2018 for approval. The Township Committee 
received a report of the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and Workforce) 
which outlined the results from the consultation exercise and which noted 
suggested recommendations in respect of West Heywood, North Heywood 
and Hopwood Hall Wards.

RESOLVED

That the Heywood Township Committee considered the proposed changes to 
polling districts and polling places within the Township arising from the review 
and not its findings.

Page 6



74 EASY HUBS AND COMMUNITY CONNECTOR SERVICE

It was reported that the Township Committee received a presentation from the 
Adult Care Service regarding ‘Community Connectors’ which was a new 
service created as part of the Locality Plan.

They were a team based in and around EASY Hubs in localities providing 
people with information, advice and signposting to appropriate organisations. 
They would support people in the Borough with issues affecting their health 
and wellbeing such as employment/training, money management, lifestyles 
(including mental health), preventative services (such as stopping smoking), 
community opportunities (volunteering) and housing.

They could also give advice to anyone over 18 years but also had links with 
the Early Help Team if the person was under 18 and could signpost them 
there. Referrals could be from anyone – professional or the public and can be 
via one email, one telephone number or attending a drop in session within 
their community.

RESOLVED

That the presentation be noted and welcomed.

75 OUR ROCHDALE THE ONLINE DIRECTORY OF SERVICES

The Township Committee received a presentation from Mr. M. Hicks (HMR 
CCG) regarding ‘Our Rochdale’ an online directory of health and social care 
services, that are provided by the NHS in the Borough and by the Children’s 
and Adults Directorates of Rochdale Borough Council. The service was 
designed to give help and advice, if needed, to the website’s visitors and was 
proving to be very popular with several thousand visits to the website each 
month.

At the conclusion of the presentation the presenter was asked questions by 
Members present and he was thanked for an interesting and informative 
presentation.

RESOLVED

That the presentation be noted and welcomed.

76 YOUTH SERVICES IN HEYWOOD

The Committee welcomed a number of representatives from Rochdale 
Borough Council’s Youth Service to the meeting to provide a presentation to 
Members on their recent activities in Heywood and the Borough.

Page 7



Members enthusiastically thank the representative’s for their individual 
presentations and congratulated them on the work and actives they had been 
undertaking.

RESOLVED:

That the work of the Rochdale Borough Council’s Youth Service and 
representatives be thanked for their presentation.

77 ALLOCATIONS PLAN

The Township Committee received a presentation for the Director of Economy 
regarding the Borough’s Draft Allocations Plan. The Allocations Plan 
contained the sites to deliver the scale of growth set out in the Borough’ Core 
Strategy that was adopted in 2016. The Allocations Plan also designated 
areas for particular types of development, such as employment and areas 
where development could be restricted, recreational open spaces for 
example. It was noted that the Allocations Plan therefore formed part of the 
Local Plan for Rochdale, together with the Core Strategy and the Greater 
Manchester Minerals Plan.

The key issues covered in the presentation were: housing, employment, retail 
centres across the Borough’ green belt and green infrastructures a long with 
transport.

It was noted that the proposals, set out in the Allocations Plan, were currently 
subject to a public consultation exercise that commenced on 10th September 
2018 and would conclude on 5th November 2018 and which included a 
number of public ‘dropin’ sessions. It was reported that following the close of 
the consultation exercise all comments received would be considered in the 
production of the finalised version of the Plan that was due to be published for 
consultation in the summer of 2019. Members of the Committee commented 
on various proposals within the Heywood Township area.

Resolved:

That the presentation be noted.

78 CONSULTATION ON THE REVIEW BY THE TOWNSHIPS REVIEW 
STEERING GROUP

The Township Committee received a report of the Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers and Communities) which advised Members that in 
January 2018, the four Township Committee Chairs and a cross-party group 
of Elected Members had formed a working group to look at how the Council 
engaged with local communities, and on the workings of the Townships.

The group was facilitated by Sir Steve Houghton, Leader of Barnsley Council, 
and Officers from the Local Government Association. Its purpose was to 
consider the following in the context of cooperative values – self-help, self 

Page 8



responsibility, democracy, equality, equity and solidarity, and behaviours 
playing a key part in the future role of the Townships.

The report of the Township Review Members Panel contained a number of 
recommendations for consideration - which were attached at Appendix 1 to 
the Committee’s report. The views of the Township Committee’s membership 
were sought as part of the consultation exercise, noting that any changes to 
the Township Committee governance structure would be subject to approval 
by full Council.

The report detailed six specific recommendations:

a. Members to have a broader role in having oversight of issues such as 
Health and Social Care and other issues at a township level, and 
should play a stronger role in developing more resilient communities.

b. Continued recognition of different needs and priorities throughout the 
Borough, across townships and at a neighbourhood level.

c. Members to have a role in encouraging co-creation within communities
d. A re-structure of the Rochdale Township (the establishment of two 

Township Committees to cover the current nine Rochdale Township 
Wards)

e. Consideration to be given to developing greater core capacity of 
Township staffing levels

f. Creation of Ward Alliances

The Committee considered the report and its recommendations in detail. The 
Committee felt that there was insufficient information in the report at the 
current time to support the establishment of Ward Alliances and in this regard 
the Committee felt that they needed more information and time to form a view 
on this matter. Members also expressed some reluctance to replace the 
current system, whereby each of the Township’s Wards had a dedicated Area 
Forum, with a Ward Alliance.

The Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities), informed 
the Committee that a report would be presented to the Informal Cabinet, 
following which a new report would be submitted to the Township 
Committees, which would be co-presented by the Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for the Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture Portfolio

RESOLVED

That consideration of the report be deferred to the Committee’s next meeting 
on 14th January 2019 and that the Cabinet Member with responsibility for the 
Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture Portfolio be invited to the meeting to 
discuss the proposals with Members of the Committee.

Page 9



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting MeetingDateLegal
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment
Report Author Paul Wotton
Public Document

Objections to Traffic Order - Bamford Road, Heywood Hall Road, 
and Queens Park Road, Heywood

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

Proposed extensions of some No Waiting At Any Time restrictions at the well 
used junction of Bamford Road and Heywood Hall Road have been advertised 
and three objections and a petition were received.

This report explains the background to the proposal and comments upon the 
points made by the objectors to assist the Committee in coming to a decision 
whether to implement, and to what extent the Order may be introduced.

Recommendation
2.1

2.2

2.3

The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation 
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.53) 
Order be implemented as advertised, be amended, or be abandoned in light of 
the objections received, which are in Appendix C of this report.

It is the recommendation of Highways Officers that the Order should be 
introduced to address parking issues which obstruct junction visibility where 
Bamford Road meets Heywood Hall Road.

It further recommended by Highways Officers that the Order should be 
introduced to cover the short section of Queens Park Road which is part of the 
same proposed Order and did not receive any objections when advertised.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1
3.1.1

Copy of Statement of Reasons:
Bamford Road and Heywood Hall Road junction – Both roads are
non-strategic highways situated to the north of Heywood town centre in 
North Heywood Ward.

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

3.1.9

3.1.10

3.1.11

Indiscriminate parking at this junction causes difficulty for motorists using the 
junction by restricting both available road width and forward visibility.

Heywood Hall Road - on its north side the present restrictions extend for 
some 17 metres from Bamford Road and on the south side extend only for a 
distance of 5 metres, beyond which vehicles are often parked when visiting 
the corner property Newsagents and Off-Licence premises causing a 
narrowing in road width for vehicles approaching Bamford Road junction.

Bamford Road - on its east side the present restrictions extend only for 3 
metres in a northerly direction from Heywood Hall Road which give very 
poor visibility of oncoming traffic from the north, however, visibility to the 
south is much better due to the positioning of a long established bus stop.

A further bus stop is situated on Bamford Road directly opposite the junction 
with Heywood Hall Road.

It is therefore intended to extend No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on 
Bamford Road and Heywood Hall Road and to protect both Bus Stops with 
clearways.

The No Waiting At Any Time restrictions proposed for both Heywood Hall 
Road and Bamford Road will not prohibit any of

 Stopping to load/unload
 Allowing a passenger to board/alight
 The disabled blue badge ‘3 hours parking concession’

Queens Park Road – This is also a non-strategic highway situated to the 
north of Heywood town centre where it has become apparent that an 
approximately 30 metres long section on its west side between Adelaide 
Street and Longford Street is not described in the Heywood Traffic 
Regulation Order to cover the currently marked double yellow lines which 
have been in place for some considerable time.

Queens Park Road to the north and south does already have No Waiting At 
Any Time restrictions in place, and it is believed that the section under 
consideration is merely an oversight which ought to be corrected.

No premises or accesses front onto the affected section of Queen’s Park 
Road which is situated opposite the Greater Manchester Police premises, 
and it is believed that including this section of restrictions in the Heywood 
Traffic Order would not in any way disadvantage any frontagers by 
maintaining what otherwise appear to be consistent restrictions at the south 
end of Queens Park Road from York Street A58 to a point 15 metres north 
of its junction with Longford Street.

There have been no recorded injury accidents in the last three years on the 
sections of Bamford Road and Heywood Hall Road under consideration. 

Page 11



3.2
3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.3
3.3.1

Bamford Road and Heywood Hall Road junction Proposals:
Bamford Road - Extend the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on its east 
side to the north of Heywood Hall Road by 7 metres to a total length of 10 
metres in a northerly direction.

Heywood Hall Road - Extend the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on its 
south side to the east of Bamford Road by 10 metres to a total length of 15 
metres in an easterly direction.

Bus Stop Clearways – operating for 24 hours a day are proposed to cover 
the existing bus stops on Bamford Road close to the junction with Heywood 
Hall Road.

Queens Park Road Proposals:
Introduce No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on the west side of Queens 
Park Road from its junction with Adelaide Street to Longford Street.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2
4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.3

4.2.4

Queens Park Road
This simple proposal received no objections at the advertisement stage and 
will correct an oversight in current Traffic Orders. There will be no difference 
to the double yellow lines presently marked on the road, and no further 
justification is offered.

Bamford Road and Heywood Hall Road junction
The three objections are from persons whose parking preferences are 
affected by the proposals.

The plan in Appendix A shows the extent of existing restrictions, the extent 
of the bus stops which do not change, and the proposed modest increases 
in restrictions on the east side of Bamford Road to the north of Heywood 
Hall Road to improve the emerging driver’s view of oncoming traffic from 
their right.

The 7 metres long extension of the restrictions is the minimum felt 
necessary to improve visibility whilst minimising the reduction of parking 
space on Bamford Road and it is entirely arguable that a greater distance 
than advertised could be justified, but having taken careful observations the 
distance proposed is believed to strike a reasonable balance.

On Heywood Hall Road there is no change to the existing 15 metres length 
of restriction its north side.

On the south side of Heywood Hall Road it is proposed to extend the 
present 5 metres length of restriction by 10 metres to a total of 15 metres to 
assist operation of the junction, in particular to increase the chance of traffic 
being able to negotiate it without being held up by traffic travelling in 

Page 12



4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.2.9

4.2.10

4.2.11

4.2.12

4.3
4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

opposing directions, or risking a collision because a vehicle cannot negotiate 
the junction safely in an unhindered manner.

All three objectors make reference to their perceived loss of customary 
parking close to or directly outside their home or business.

The only right the general public including residents has on the highway is a 
right of passage along it and parking close to a junction contravenes Section 
243 of The Highway Code.

None of the objectors acknowledge that there are junction visibility or safety 
issues present at this location for either drivers or pedestrians.

By removing some parked vehicles from the junction it will give clearer 
visibility of and for pedestrians to assist crossing the junction in a safer 
manner.

For the avoidance of doubt the existing bus stops are intended to have ‘no 
stopping except buses’ restrictions added to their established extents.

The No Waiting At Any Time restrictions proposed do not restrict stopping to 
allow a passenger to board or alight, or allow loading and unloading to take 
place, or use the ‘disabled badge 3 hours concession.
 
The petition signed by c156 persons who are customers of the corner shop 
situated on the junction of Bamford Road and Heywood Hall Road does 
demonstrate a strength of feeling without acknowledging any of the issues 
faced by users of the junction, all of whom are pedestrians to some extent 
and would benefit from a clearer and safer junction layout.

Those signing the petition do not demonstrate an understanding of the 
issues we are trying to address.

Alternatives Considered
The measures proposed are the minimum believed necessary to alleviate 
some identified parking problems at the junction of Bamford Road and 
Heywood Hall Road.

Scaling down the proposals or not implementing them in the opinion of 
highways officers will not address the issues raised.

At Queens Park Road, if the measures are not implemented, this will result 
in parking which would impede traffic flow by creating a pinch point on a 
section of road close to Heywood Town Centre that is otherwise restricted.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is estimated to be £4000 
and will be met by the Heywood Township Capital fund.

Page 13



Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely 
and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

6.1

Consultation

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on 
2nd October 2018.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper 
on 4th October 2018.

The objection period ran until 25th October 2018.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Paul Wotton, , 
paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 14



APPENDIX A – Bamford Road and Heywood Hall Road 

Scheme plan as advertised – OBJECTIONS RECEIVED

Page 15



APPENDIX A – Queens Park Road 

Scheme plan as advertised – NO OBJECTIONS

Page 16



APPENDIX B – Notice of Intention

TRO Ref No H60/1281
BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)
(VARIOUS STREETS) (HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)

(AMENDMENT) (NO. 53) ORDER

Bamford Road, Heywood Hall Road and Queen’s Park Road, Heywood

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of 
its powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, 
intend to make an Order, the effect of which would be to:-

(1) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions)
 (Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Bamford Road, North Heywood Ward
n (i) the east side from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Heywood 

Hall Road to a point 18 metres south of its junction with Heywood Hall 
Road

Heywood Hall Road, North Heywood Ward
n (i) the south side from its junction with Bamford Road for a distance of 15 

metres in an easterly direction

Queen’s Park Road, North Heywood Ward
n (i) the west side from its junction with Adelaide Street to its junction with 

Longford Street

(2) Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of 
Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 
2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Bamford Road, North Heywood Ward
(v) the east side from a point 3 metres north of its junction with Heywood 

Hall Road to a point 18 metres south of its junction with Heywood Hall 
Road

Heywood Hall Road, North Heywood Ward

(vi) the south side from its junction with Bamford Road for a distance of 5 metres in 
an easterly direction

Page 17



(3) In addition to the provisions contained in the Borough of Rochdale 
((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) 
(Heywood Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.53) Order, it is 
proposed to create 24 hour Bus Stop Clearways on:-

Bamford Road, North Heywood Ward
east side from a point 2 metres south of its junction with Heywood Hall 
Road for a distance of 16 metres in a southerly direction

west side from a point 23 metres south of its junction with Claybank 
Street for a distance of 23 metres in a southerly direction

A copy of the proposed Order and maps showing the lengths of roads concerned, 
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be 
inspected at the Customer Services Centre, Heywood Library, L/Cpl Stephen 
Shaw M.C. Way, Heywood, OL10 1LL during normal office hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, 
must be made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, 
alternatively, to Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU to reach the Council on or before 25th October 2018, 
quoting H60/1281.

Dated this 4th day of October 2018

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 18

mailto:trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX C – Objections Received

Objector 1                 . 
   . Bamford Road, Heywood. OL10     .

Details of objection

Objector’s comments written as received
Response of the Director of 

Neighbourhoods

Subject: Objection to Traffic Contraventions
 
Ref: Borough of Rochdale: Civil 
enforcement of traffic contravention.
Hey wood Town. Order 2008. 

Dear David Wilcock,  

I hope you are well. 

We would like to object against the traffic 
contravention on Heywood Hall Road. 

We own The Corner Shop number     . and 
also the flat above the shop. 

We currently use the space at the side of the 
shop to park and unload our stock, as do our 
suppliers. 

Our tenant currently parks in the proposed no 
waiting zone. 

Also it would deter customers from being 
able to quickly stop and pop in for essentials 
which would affect our business as a whole.

In overall terms this proposal will really affect 
our day to day operations and sales. 

We would be grateful if you could consider 
leaving this street as it is please. 

Yours Sincerely
                . 

This proposal is a result of a request to 
solve junction visibility and obstruction 
issues caused by parked vehicles at a 
junction.

The present narrowing of the carriageway 
width and reduction in forward visibility 
due to parked vehicles, can cause 
vehicles to stop within the limits of the 
junction stopping traffic flow on Bamford 
Road, and risking collisions.

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

The objector does not acknowledge the 
fact that what is proposed is No Waiting 
At Any Time, to be indicated by double 
yellow lines which does allow loading and 
unloading to take place.

The objector does not make any 
reference to the difficulty caused to traffic 
by parked vehicles at this junction.

The objector does not acknowledge that  
parking at a junction contravenes the 
highway code, and that the restrictions 
would improve pedestrian safety of their 
customers 

Page 19



Objector 2  PETITION (156 signatures)

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

To whom it may concern,

Please find attached a copy of a petition 
objecting against the proposal for the parking 
restrictions on Heywood Hall Road and 
Bamford Road. Ref. H60/1281. The new 
parking restrictions were not made clear to 
residents, no letters were posted and signs 
that were put up were not clear therefore 
action was not taken earlier however a 
petition was started by the local community 
and visitors of the corner shop on Friday 19th 
October and enclosed for you on Monday 
22nd. We have gathered over 150 signatures 
in this short period of time and are certain we 
could have gathered more over a larger 
period of time.

We hope you take these objections into 
serious consideration before making any 
changes to parking restrictions in our area.

Objection to double yellow lines on 
Bamford Road Ref H60/1281

We the undersigned objected to double 
yellow lines due to residents having nowhere 
to park, people visiting (homes & 
convenience stores), elderly people shopping 
& children going to school. Total signed 156

Consultation required has taken place by 
publishing the Notice of Intention in the 
Heywood Advertiser on 4th October 2018 
and prominently on site as required by 
legislation and for the required duration.

The published Notice is Appendix B of this 
report.

It is relatively easy to obtain signatures 
from shop visitors, without their full 
consideration of the proposals in detail,

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

There is kerbspace available for parking 
in the area but it is accepted this is in 
locations that may not be as convenient 
as the present arrangement.

The petitioners make no mention of the 
potential improvement in their safety by 
restriction parking at the junction which 
would create greater visibility.

Page 20



Objector 3
                . 

   . Bamford Road, Heywood. OL10     .

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Subject: Re - H60/1281

From:                 .,    ., Bamford Road, 
Heywood. OL10     .

As a resident of 35 years on this road, I 
would like to object strongly to the 
enforcement order for double yellow lines.

It is an appalling idea as there are no 
other parking facilities in the area for our 
cars,

The vast majority of residents have cars and 
there is no spare land wherever in the 
vicinity.

WHERE ARE WE SUPPOSED TO PARK 
OUR CARS?

I note that there hasn't been a reason given 
for this decision.

During my time on this road there hasn't 
been any serious accidents.

At the junction of Bamford Road/ Heywood 
Hall Road there is busy paper/grocery shop 
which relies on passing trade. What hope if 
there for their continuing prosperity?

More consultation must be sought as the time 
given for objection has been minimum. 

                                   
            

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.

Some kerbspace is generally available for 
parking in the area which may well be in 
locations that are not be as convenient as 
the present arrangement.

Some available kerb space has been 
observed for parking particularly on 
Heywood Hall Road, but not in the 
position desired by the objector.

The Statement of Reasons at Section 3 of 
this report explains the reasoning behind 
this scheme.

The proposed restrictions do not prevent 
vehicles stopping to allow a passenger to 
board or alight, or to carry out loading and 
unloading.

Consultation required has taken place by 
publishing the Notice of Intention in the 
Heywood Advertiser on 4th October 2018 
and prominently on site as required by 
legislation and for the required duration..

The published Notice is Appendix B of 
this report.

Page 21



Objector 4
                . 

   . Bamford Road, Heywood OL10      .

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Ref – H60/1281

I would like to object to having double yellow 
lines on Bamford Road. I have lived here for 
18 years and never seen an accident.

We would have nowhere to park our cars nor 
would customers at the local paper shop / 
convenience store. Where would our visitors 
park and elderly people stop to pick up or 
unload their shopping.

Yours faithfully                 . 

The only right the general public including 
residents has on the highway is a right of 
passage along it.
If introduced, the restrictions will cause 
parked vehicles to displace.

Some kerbspace is generally available for 
parking in the area which may well be in 
locations that are not be as convenient as 
the present arrangement.

The proposed restrictions do not prevent 
vehicles stopping to allow a passenger to 
board or alight, or to carry out loading and 
unloading.

Page 22


	Agenda
	7 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/10/2018 Heywood Township Committee
	Minutes


	8 Objections to Traffic Order - Bamford Road, Heywood Hall Road, and Queens Park Road, Heywood

